
 

1 

VILLAGE OF GRAFTON 
 

JOINT TOWN OF GRAFTON/VILLAGE OF GRAFTON  
AD-HOC COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

 
AUGUST 25, 2009 

 
The Joint Town of Grafton/Village of Grafton Ad-Hoc Committee meeting was called to 
order by Chair Jim Brunnquell at 4:30 p.m.  
 
Village of Grafton members present: Jim Brunnquell, Alan Schlecht, and Al Kletti 
 
Town of Grafton members present: Lester Bartel, Robert Wolf, Lyle Sperber, Tom 
Sykora, and Mike Ansay arriving at 4:30 p.m. 
 
Absent: Village member Scott Volkert  
 
Town of Grafton Staff/Officials present: Town Engineer Kristen Lundeen, and Town of 
Grafton Attorney Steven Hahn 
 
Village of Grafton Staff/Officials present:  Village Administrator Darrell Hofland, Director 
of Planning and Development Michael Rambousek, Director of Public Works/Engineer 
Dave Murphy, and Administrative Secretary II Deborah A Brown 
 
MINUTES 

Motion by Lester Bartel, seconded by Robert Wolf, to approve the minutes 
of the May 29, 2007, Joint Town of Grafton/Village of Grafton Ad-Hoc 
Committee meeting, as presented.  Approved unanimously. 
 

HEAR PERSONS REQUESTING TO BE HEARD 
None 
 
REIMBURSEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF TOWN ROADS THAT ARE 
ANNEXED INTO THE VILLAGE 
Director of Public Works/Village Engineer Dave Murphy stated that the possible 
financial reimbursement from the Village of Grafton to the Town of Grafton for 
annexed roadways was briefly discussed by the Joint Ad-Hoc Committee in the 
past. He reviewed a document sent to the Town Engineer, Kristen Lundeen on 
June 18, 2009, which outlined suggested procedures for this reimbursement 
program. He commented that this would allow the Town of Grafton to make 
improvements on roads that are adjacent to the Village and recover the costs if 
and when the area is annexed into the Village.  
 
Mr. Murphy also indicated that the cost would be a strict percentage of the actual 
project cost, with no consideration for interest. The project cost would include 



 

2 

design, legal fees, construction cost, survey and inspection. He reviewed a chart 
showing the years since construction and the percentage reimbursed.  
 
He also reviewed the reimbursement for roads with acceptable documented 
cross sections and reimbursement provided on a published “Pay Scale”. He 
stated that the proposed reimbursement plan would be based upon the age of 
the road. One hundred percent of the reimbursement provided within (3) years of 
the reconstruction and minimum reimbursement of 10 percent, regardless of the 
age of the road.  
 
Mike Ansay inquired on the standards that were used to draft this documentation. 
 
Director Murphy stated that he used the engineering standards which consider 
the average life of road to be 20 years.  
 
A brief discussion took place on the standards utilized by Ozaukee County.  
 
Committee members expressed concerns with upcoming projects such as Falls 
Road and also the improvements on Cedar Creek Road.  
 
Lester Bartel expressed the concern that the Town would have to review its 5 
year Capital Improvement Plan to determine if the budget would allow these road 
improvements for 2010. He stated that it may be possible for the Town to include 
one of the road improvement projects, but not both in the same year.   
 
Chair Brunnquell commented that he thinks that the Village of Grafton could work 
on a plan that would work for the Town of Grafton. 
 
It was the general consensus of the Committee to move forward with preparing 
the terms of annexation reimbursement for review at the next Committee 
meeting. 
 
POSSIBLE TOWN PARTICIPATION IN THE CEDAR CREEK ROAD PROJECT 
Mr. Murphy reviewed plans of pulverizing and repaving Cedar Creek Road from 
CTH O west to the Village limits. He stated that it was in the Village budget to 
begin design work in 2010 with a rough estimate of $100,000 in total design 
costs. If the Town of Grafton participates in the project, costs would be split for 
the design on a 50-50 basis.  
 
He also indicated that the work that would be done would run roughly from 
railroad tracks to approximately Maple Road. The project includes the possibility 
of adding a paved 6-foot wide bike lane on both sides of the roadway.  
 
Director Murphy also stated that Ozaukee County is also looking at road 
improvements on CTH O in 2010.  
 



 

3 

Lester Bartel stated that he was happy that the Town and Village are working 
together to create a framework for future projects that affect both communities.  
 
Chair Brunnquell asked that the Village staff work together with Town of Grafton 
Staff to create a plan that both communities can work with. He suggested that 
installment payments be looked at as an option in the plan. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
Lester Bartel inquired about Ozaukee County dispatch services and if the Village had 
any intention on going with the County on dispatch (911) services.  
 
Chair Brunnquell stated that the Village currently has local dispatch and the Village 
Board has pretty much agreed on staying with local dispatching for emergency services. 
He further stated that the last time this issue was discussed; residents were not in favor 
of the option of utilizing Ozaukee County for dispatch services.  
 
Mr. Bartel also inquired about the outcome of the Village of Grafton’s research into the 
Lake Michigan access for water.  
 
Village Administrator Darrell Hofland stated that the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional 
Planning Commission completed their study in December, 2008. Their plan defined 
alternatives for reversing the trend/depletion of groundwater supplies and creating a 
sustainable water supply for Southeastern Wisconsin.  One of recommended plan 
identifies a new joint or regional water treatment plant between Grafton and surrounding 
municipalities. He commented that because the cost associated with acquiring land 
along Lake Michigan and the costs involved with building a water treatment facility are 
very high.  Another alternative is the purchase of water from the City of Port 
Washington. 
 
Mr. Hofland informed the Committee that the Village will be drilling another well in 2020-
2025 to help with the water needs of the community related to growth.  
 
A brief discussion took place on obtaining land along Lake Michigan for a future 
connection to Lake Michigan as a municipal water supply, and related action by the 
Town to identify this land on their Official Map as a requirement to be considered by 
future developers.  
 
Lester Bartel stated that with the recent update on the Land Use Map, this would be a 
good time to look at properties that may have potential to provide a location for water 
service from Lake Michigan into the Village for future use.  
 
It was the consensus of the Committee to have the Village’s Public Works Department 
and Water Utility look at this option in the future. 
 
 
 



 

4 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
Lester Bartel inquired how the Village handles noxious weed violations and if they 
inspect for this type of violation.  
 
Director Murphy explained that the Village does inspect and enforce the noxious weed 
violations in the Village.  
 
Lester Bartel also inquired about the next informational meeting on the removal of the 
Bridge Street Dam. 
 
Administrator Hofland indicated that Ozaukee County would be hiring Bonestroo to 
survey the river bed to allow an accurate depiction of what the river will look like if the 
dam is removed. The proposal will include completion of three dimensional drawings. 
The plan will include the anticipated amenities, such as the extended river walk under 
the bridge, an ice staking area, as well as the effect the dam removal will have on 
private properties.   
 
The next public informational meeting will most likely be set sometime in late 
September. 
 
SET NEXT JOINT AD-HOC COMMITTEE MEETING 
The members of the Ad Hoc Committee will meet in the early spring of 2010. Staff will 
coordinate a mutually agreeable date. 
 
ADJOURN 

Motion by Lester Bartel, seconded by Al Schlecht, to adjourn the meeting 
at 5:12 p.m.  Approved unanimously. 


